

CANDIDATE INFORMATION BOOKLET

Beach Lifeguard

Open Call: May – June 2025

Submit your CV and Cover Letter to: recruit@meathcoco.ie

Human Resources Department Meath County Council

recruit@meathcoco.ie | (046) 9097040 | www.meath.ie





Contents

The Competition
The Position3
Purpose, Duties and Responsibilities
Qualifications for the Post4
Character4
Health4
Education and Experience4
Desirable Experience and knowledge5
Miscellaneous Provisions
Salary5
Hours of Work6
Start Date6
Leave6
Sick Leave6
Probation6
Travel7
Residence7
Citizenship7
Safety and Welfare7
Training8
Garda Vetting8
Outside Employment
Superannuation Contribution8
Pension Arrangements and Retirement Age9
Communications9
Application Process9
Selection Process

Before you Proceed	
Submission of Application Form	
Short-Listing	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Interview Stage	
Pre-Employment Checks	11
Fine Print	11
General Information	11
Terms and Conditions	13
Frequently Asked Questions	14

The Competition

The Position

Meath County Council invites applications from suitably qualified persons who wish to be considered for inclusion on a panel from which permanent & fixed-term contract vacancies for the position of Beach Lifeguard shall be drawn.

Purpose, Duties and Responsibilities

The duties of the post of the Beach Lifeguard include, but are not limited to:

- Attending at place of work in a punctual manner;
- Opening the Lifeguard hut and checking weather for appropriate flag to be erected;
- Send text within 15 mins of arrival at Beach to WSDO confirming initials of all lifeguards on site;
- Wearing the official Lifeguard clothing as provided by the Council at all times when on duty;
- Checking the tide;
- Putting out temporary signage as appropriate;
- Patrolling the beach regularly
- Checking all signs and lifesaving equipment including ring buoys on the beach daily;
- Keeping the assigned area clear of all hazards and remove same as required e.g. broken glass etc;
- Keeping the welfare unit and area around Lifeguard station clean;
- Beach Lifeguards should be on patrol or on look out from outside of the hut and should be inside the hut or welfare unit for breaks only;
- Being courteous with members of the public;
- Logging all accident and incident reports;
- Liaising with supervisor and Communications Department of the Council in relation to media issues. Dealing directly with the media is not permitted;
- Keeping the Lifeguard Hut clear of visitors except people in need of First Aid;
- Managing the assigned beach area in respect of all activities;
- Reporting directly to the Water Safety Development Officer and/or District Engineer and/or their designated persons;

- Supervising and assisting in rescue operations;
- Reviewing complaints and accidents where required;
- Testifying in court as a witness if required on behalf of the Council;
- Reporting to their supervisor on the state of all rescue equipment, facilities and supplies;
- Warning the public of dangerous conditions and post warning devices;
- Administering medical aid and performs cardio-pulmonary resuscitation;
- Explaining bye-laws and regulations to the public where necessary;
- Coordinating with and requesting assistance from other agencies as required (in conjunction with supervisor);
- Ensuring that at all times, priority is given to Swimmers and First Aid requirements.
- All duties as laid down in the Irish Water Safety Lifeguard Handbook as appropriate to their workplace

This list may not include all duties to be performed by employees in this appointment. This list may not include all duties required as the nature of a Beach Lifeguards work may lead to unforeseen lifesaving situations ashore. Lifeguards will be required to work irregular hours to coincide with tidal conditions and bathing periods, including work at weekends and **particularly over holiday weekends**.

Qualifications for the Post

Character

Each candidate must be of good character.

Health

Each candidate must be in a state of health such as would indicate a reasonable prospect of ability to render regular and efficient service.

Education and Experience

Each candidate must, on the latest date for receipt of completed application forms:

- Hold a current Irish Water Safety, National Beach Lifeguard Award or equivalent qualification as recognised by the International Lifesaving Federation (ILS);
- Be 18 years of age or over

All candidates will be required to undergo a practical test in Basic Life Support (BLS), swimming ability, lifesaving techniques and a theory test conducted by an examiner nominated by the Irish Water Safety Association. They will be required to maintain a daily training routine unless they are engaged in lifesaving operations.

Candidates holding Certificates of Competence in basic first aid and/or VHF radio will gain extra marks.

While the above qualification is the minimum requirement for this post the following Pre-Hospital Emergency Care Council (PHECC) qualifications would also be desirable: Cardiac First Responder, Emergency First Responder, and Occupational First Aid.

Relevant experience in relation to the post is desirable

Successful candidates will be subject to Garda Vetting

Desirable Experience and knowledge

The following are desirable:

- Experience dealing with Public/Customers
- Have an ability to work effectively within a team to achieve a common goal, ensuring standards are adhered to and maintained;
- Have the ability to provide excellent customer services;
- Have good interpersonal and communications skills;
- Be motivated to achieve maximum performance;
- Have an ability to work on own initiative, in an independent environment and without constant supervision;

Have an awareness of Health and Safety Legislation and Regulations, the implications for the organisation and the employee, and their application in the workplace.

Miscellaneous Provisions

Salary

Salary scale: €17.37 per hour (EL 03/25). Payment of increments is dependent on satisfactory performance.

Entry point of this scale will be determined in accordance with relevant Departmental Circulars.

Hours of Work

The maximum working week will be 39 hours and the working pattern will include Saturday and Sunday working on a rotational basis. Hours will be part – time for June, full time for July & August and part-time for the first two weeks in September. All hours worked will be subject to the provision of the Organisation of Working Time Act, 1997 as amended.

Candidates must be available to work from Monday to Sunday and hours shall vary from early morning to late evening. The working hours will be on a rota basis arranged by the Supervisor.

You may be required to complete a time-sheet in accordance with the Organisation of Working Time Regulations, 2001.

Start Date

Meath County Council shall require a person to whom an offer of employment is made to take up an appointment within a reasonable period of time, usually two months from date of offer, to meet the organisational requirements of the Council. Meath County Council reserves the right to withdraw its offer in the event that an appointment is not taken up within such a period.

Leave

Annual leave will be calculated on a pro rata basis based on the number of hours worked.

The leave entitlement and entitlement to Public Holidays shall be granted in accordance with the Organisation of Working Time Act, 1997.

The annual leave applicable to this post will be 8% of the hours worked in any one year.

Sick Leave

The terms of the Public Service Sick Pay Scheme will prevail.

Probation

The following provisions will apply:

- (a) there shall be a period after such appointments take effect during which such persons shall hold the position on probation,
- (b) such period shall be 9 months but the Chief Executive may at his or her discretion extend such period,
- (c) such persons shall cease to hold the position at end of the period of probation unless during such period, the Chief Executive has certified that the service of such persons is satisfactory.

Travel

It is desirable that holders of the post should hold a full driving licence for class B vehicles and shall be required to drive a motor car in the course of their duties and for this purpose, provide and maintain a car to the satisfaction of the local authority. Travelling expenses and subsistence expenses necessarily incurred in the course of official duties will be refunded in accordance with appropriate rates in line with the relevant Department Circulars and Local Authority Travel and Subsistence Policy.

Meath County Council, as employer, must be indemnified on your insurance policy. If during your employment, your licence is revoked, even temporarily, or if you receive endorsements on your licence, which may affect your duties, you are obliged to notify the Council immediately.

Residence

The person holding the office must reside in, or at an address convenient to performing the role/function as approved by the Chief Executive.

Citizenship

Candidates must, by the date of any job offer, be:

- a) A citizen of the European Economic Area (EEA). The EEA consists of the Member States of the European Union, Iceland, Liechtenstein and Norway; or
- b) A citizen of the United Kingdom (UK); or
- c) A citizen of Switzerland pursuant to the agreement between the EU and Switzerland on the free movement of persons; or
- d) A non-EEA citizen who is a spouse or child of an EEA or UK or Swiss citizen and has a stamp 4 visa; or
- e) A person awarded international protection under the International Protection Act 2015 or any family member entitled to remain in the State as a result of family reunification and has a stamp 4 visa or
- f) A non-EEA citizen who is a parent of a dependent child who is a citizen of, and resident in, an EEA member state or the UK or Switzerland and has a stamp 4 visa

Safety and Welfare

The holder of the post shall co-operate with the terms of Meath County Council's Safety Statement and Major Emergency Plan. He/she shall familiarise him/herself with the safety rules and procedures and make proper use of all safety, clothing and equipment.

Training

It is a condition of employment that successful candidates will be required to participate in training programmes relevant to the skills necessary for the performance of the duties attaching to the post.

Garda Vetting

Successful candidates may be subject to Garda Vetting in advance of appointment to the position.

Outside Employment

The officer may not engage in private practice, or be connected with any outside business, which would interfere with the performance of official duties.

Superannuation Contribution

Membership of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme or the Single Public Service Pension Scheme is compulsory for all employees. Details will be provided to the appointee prior to appointment.

A person who becomes a pensionable officer of a local authority who is liable to pay the Class A rate of PRSI contribution will be required in respect of superannuation to contribute to the local authority at the rate of 1.5% of pensionable remuneration plus 3.5% of net pensionable remuneration (i.e. pensionable remuneration less twice the annual rate of social insurance old age contributory pension payable at the maximum rate to a person with no adult dependant or qualified children). A person paying Class A rate of PRSI who becomes a pensionable officer of a local authority will be required in respect of the Local Government (Spouses and Children's Contributory Pension) Scheme to contribute to the local authority at the rate of 1.5% of pensionable remuneration in accordance with the terms of the scheme.

A person who becomes a pensionable officer of a local authority who is liable to pay the Class D rate of PRSI contribution will be required in respect of his/her superannuation to contribute to the local authority at the rate of 5% of pensionable remuneration. A person paying Class D rate of PRSI who becomes a pensionable officer of a local authority depending on their existing scheme, may be a member of a dependent scheme i.e. either the Local Government (Widows & Orphans Contributory Pension) Scheme or the Local Government (Spouses and Children's Contributory Pension) Scheme and if a member of either scheme will be required in respect of the to contribute to the local authority at the rate of 1.5% of pensionable remuneration in accordance with the terms of the scheme.

Officers are admitted to the Superannuation Scheme in accordance with the terms of the Local Government Superannuation (Consolidation) Act, 1998 and the Superannuation (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 2004, with effect from date of appointment. This scheme is contributory and provides pension, retirement and death gratuities.

In order for a new entrant to the scheme to qualify for a pension, he/she must have served a minimum of two years employment in a local authority.

For new entrants under the Single Public Service Pension Scheme, effective from 1st January 2013, superannuation contributions are as follows: 3.5% of net pensionable remuneration and 3% of pensionable remuneration. Pension and retirement lump sum will be based on career-average pensionable remuneration; pensions will be co-ordinated with the State Pension Contributory.

Pension Arrangements and Retirement Age

Candidates will be informed of their superannuation position at time an offer of appointment is being made.

Communications

Meath County Council will contact you, when necessary, at each stage of the competition by email. It is strongly recommended that you <u>only submit one email address</u> for all correspondence in relation to this competition.

It is important to note that the email address you provide when applying must be one that you can always access. The onus is on the applicant to inform the Human Resources Department of any change in email address throughout the recruitment and selection campaign. This can be done by emailing recruit@meathcoco.ie. The onus is also on each applicant to ensure that s/he is in receipt of all communication from Meath County Council. Meath County Council does not accept responsibility for communications not accessed or received by an applicant.

Application Process

To be considered for the position of Beach Lifeguard, simply submit your Curriculum Vitae and a Cover Letter to recruit@meathcoco.ie and we will contact you soon after.

This is a Rolling Recruitment process, over the months of **May and June 2025.** There is no deadline but the process will close at the end of June. As soon as you submit your interest, we will follow-up with you to arrange an interview, should you meet the qualifications set out above.

Selection Process

The Selection Process may include the following:

- An eligibility check on your CV to ensure that you meet the minimum qualifications and requirements for the post.
- Invite for Interview

* Please note that Meath County Council reserves the right to hold any part of the selection process by way of remote/video-call platform or other appropriate methodology.

Before you Proceed

Before proceeding with this phase of the selection process you should satisfy yourself that you meet the minimum qualification criteria for the post as set out above. This will prevent you from incurring unnecessary expense in progressing in the competition.

Submission of Application Form

The information submitted in your CV and Cover Letter will determine whether you are invited for an interview. There is no requirement to submit evidence of education / experience at this point. The initial step of the process will be to determine that you meet the required minimum criteria for the position. If you do not meet the criteria, you will not be invited for an interview.

Interview Stage

The interview is your opportunity to give evidence of your knowledge, skills and experience and the Local Authority's opportunity to assess your suitability for the role as advertised.

The admission of a person to a competition, or invitation to attend an interview, is not to be taken as implying that Meath County Council is satisfied that such person fulfils the requirements of the Regulations or is not disqualified by law from holding the position and does not carry a guarantee that your application will receive further consideration. It is important therefore for you to note, the onus is on you to ensure that you meet the eligibility requirements for the competition before attending for interview. If you do not meet these essential entry requirements but nevertheless attend for interview you will be putting yourself to unnecessary expense, as Meath County Council will not be responsible for refunding any expenses incurred.

Meath County Council may at its discretion require candidates to attend a preliminary interview in which case admission to the competitive interview would be conditional on candidates reaching such a standard as Meath County Council considered appropriate in the preliminary interview.

Interviews shall be conducted by Board(s) set up by Meath County Council. The Board(s) will assess the merits of candidates (except insofar as they are assessed otherwise) in respect of matters referred to in the prescribed Qualifications and any other relevant matters. Only candidates who reach such a standard as Meath County Council considers satisfactory in the competitive interview shall be considered for selection and placed on a panel. The onus is on all applicants to make themselves available for interview.

Pre-Employment Checks

Before contracts of employment are entered into, various checks are undertaken. These include medicals, references and may include Garda Vetting. The Council will invite those successful candidates who accept an offer to fill a vacancy to attend a medical assessment. References for successful candidates will also be checked and Garda Vetting, if necessary, will be completed at this point.

Fine Print

General Information

- 1. Meath County Council reserves the right to vary the number and sequence of each stage of the selection process as the competition progresses
- 2. Meath County Council will not be responsible for refunding any expenses incurred by candidates.
- 3. The admission of a person to the competition, or invitation to partake or attend any element of the selection process, or a successful result letter, is not to be taken as implying that Meath County Council is satisfied that such a person fulfils the requirements.
- 4. Placement on any panel from this competition is no guarantee that a position will be offered.
- 5. **The Importance of Confidentiality:** Candidates can expect that all enquiries, applications and all aspects of the proceedings to the extent that they are managed by Meath County Council are treated as strictly confidential subject to the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2004.
- 6. Deeming of candidature to be withdrawn: Candidates who do not complete and submit any assessments before the specified date; or do not attend/ undertake any stage of the selection process as requested or do not furnish such evidence as requested in regard to any matter relevant to their candidature, will have no further claim to consideration.
- Data Protection: The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) came into force on the 25th May 2018, replacing the existing data protection framework under the EU Data Protection Directive. The personal information (data) collected on the application form, including any attachments,

(which may include the collection of sensitive personal data) is collected for the purpose of processing this application and any data collected is subject to Meath County Council's privacy statement which can be found at http://www.meath.ie/DataProtection/

8. Candidates should note that canvassing will disqualify.

Terms and Conditions

Your attention is drawn to this important information. By submitting an application or attempting any assessment you are agreeing to be bound by the terms set out below:

- 1. Canvassing Candidates should note that canvassing to enhance their candidature or encouraging others to do so will disqualify them and will result in their exclusion from the recruitment campaign.
- 2. Candidates in the recruitment process must not:
 - Knowingly or recklessly provide false information
 - Canvass any person, with or without inducements
 - Interfere with or compromise the process in any way.
- 3. A third party must not impersonate a candidate at any stage of the process. If a person found guilty of such an offence was or is a candidate in a recruitment process, then:
 - Where s/he has not been appointed to a post, s/he will be disqualified as a candidate
 - Where s/he has been appointed after the recruitment process in question, s/he shall forfeit that appointment.
- 4. The admission of a person to the competition, or invitation to undertake any element of the selection process is not to be taken as implying that Meath County Council is satisfied that such a person fulfils the essential requirements.

Frequently Asked Questions

1. Who can I contact if I have a query in relation the Recruitment Campaign?

If you are unclear in relation to any aspect of the recruitment and selection process, please read the briefing document and frequently asked questions carefully before contacting Meath County Council's Human Resources Department. If you still need to contact the Human Resources Department, please send your query via email in the first instance to <u>recruit@meathcoco.ie</u>.

2. What happens if I cannot attend a particular stage of the competition?

The onus is on you to attend for all stages of the recruitment competition at the locations, dates and times notified. Meath County Council cannot change dates and times of any stage of the process.

3. I have submitted my application form. What happens next?

Meath County Council will carry out an eligibility check on all application forms to ensure that they meet the minimum qualifications for the post. You do not need to contact the HR Department. If you do not meet the minimum eligibility requirements for the post based on the information submitted on your application form, you will not be invited to interview.

Depending on the number of candidates remaining at this stage of the competition it may be necessary to hold a short-listing process. The shortlisting process may take the form of either a desktop shortlisting process based on the information contained in the application forms or a shortlisting interview/assessment. You will be contacted by email in relation to any interview dates and times. The onus is on you to attend for interview on the dates and times allocated. Alternative dates and times cannot be facilitated. When attending for interview you must produce photographic identification when registering your attendance at the Human Resources Department.

4. What happens on completion of the shortlisting process?

Meath County Council will contact all applicants advising them of the results of the shortlisting process. If you have been successful at this stage, you will be invited for a final interview.

5. What happens after undertaking the final interview?

If you qualify at final interview stage, you will be placed on a panel and ranked in order of merit. Vacancies may be filled from this panel as they arise and in order of merit. Please note that being placed on a panel is not a guarantee that you will be appointed to the position.

6. How will Meath County Council communicate with me throughout the Recruitment and Selection Campaign?

Meath County Council will contact you when necessary, at each stage of the competition by email.

It is strongly recommended that you do not change your email address during this recruitment campaign, as any email will be sent to the email address originally supplied with your application form. It is important to note that the email address you provide when submitting your application form must be one that you can always access.

The onus is on the applicant to inform the Human Resources Department of any change in postal address, email address or mobile telephone number throughout the recruitment and selection campaign. This can be done by emailing <u>recruit@meathcoco.ie</u>

The onus is on each applicant to ensure that s/he is in receipt of all communication from Meath County Council. Meath County Council accepts no responsibility for communication not accessed or received by an applicant. General updates may also be published via social media in relation to progression of the recruitment and selection campaign at:



Meath County Council Website



Meath County Council Facebook



Meath County Council Twitter

recruit@meathcoco.ie